SPECIATION OF ARSENIC USING SULFUR CONTAINING LIGAND AND COTTON WOOL BY ICP-OES



A Thesis Submitted in Partial Fulfillment of the Requirements for the Degree of Master of Science in Chemistry Department of Chemistry Faculty of Science Chulalongkorn University Academic Year 2018 Copyright of Chulalongkorn University

การวิเคราะห์รูปแบบของอาร์เซนิกด้วยลิแกนด์ที่มีซัลเฟอร์เป็นองค์ประกอบและสำลีโดยใช้ ICP-OES



วิทยานิพนธ์นี้เป็นส่วนหนึ่งของการศึกษาตามหลักสูตรปริญญาวิทยาศาสตรมหาบัณฑิต สาขาวิชาเคมี คณะวิทยาศาสตร์ จุฬาลงกรณ์มหาวิทยาลัย ปีการศึกษา 2561 ลิบสิทธิ์ของจุฬาลงกรณ์มหาวิทยาลัย

Thesis Title	SPECIATION OF ARSENIC USING SULFUR			
	CONTAINING LIGAND AND COTTON WOOL BY			
	ICP-OES			
By	Mr. Kavee Triteeyaprasert			
Field of Study	Chemistry			
Thesis Advisor	Associate Professor APICHAT IMYIM, Ph.D.			
Thesis Co Advisor	Associate Professor NARONG PRAPHAIRAKSIT,			
	Ph.D.			

Accepted by the Faculty of Science, Chulalongkorn University in Partial Fulfillment of the Requirement for the Master of Science

Dean of the Faculty of Science (Professor POLKIT SANGVANICH, Ph.D.)

THESIS COMMITTEE

Chairman (Associate Professor VUDHICHAI PARASUK, Ph.D.) Thesis Advisor (Associate Professor APICHAT IMYIM, Ph.D.) Thesis Co-Advisor (Associate Professor NARONG PRAPHAIRAKSIT, Ph.D.) Examiner (Associate Professor FUANGFA UNOB, Ph.D.) External Examiner

(Assistant Professor Anawat Pinisakul, Ph.D.)

จุฬาลงกรณ์มหาวิทยาลัย Chulalongkorn University กวีร์ ไตรตียะประเสริฐ : การวิเคราะห์รูปแบบของอาร์เซนิกด้วยลิแกนด์ที่มีซัลเฟอร์เป็น องค์ประกอบและสำลิโดยใช้ ICP-OES. (SPECIATION OF ARSENIC USING SULFUR CONTAINING LIGAND AND COTTON WOOL BY ICP-OES) อ.ที่ปรึกษาหลัก : รศ. คร.อภิชาติ อิ่มยิ้ม, อ.ที่ปรึกษาร่วม : รศ. คร.ฉรงค์ ประไพรักษ์สิทธิ์

งานวิจัยนี้มุ่งเน้นการพัฒนาวิธีการวิเคราะห์สปีชีส์ของอาร์เซนิก ได้แก่ อาร์เซนิก(III) และอาร์เซนิก (V) ในตัวอย่างทางสิ่งแวดล้อม ด้วยเทคนิคการแยกด้วยเฟสของแข็ง โดยใช้สำลีและลิแกนด์ที่มีซัลเฟอร์เป็น องก์ประกอบ ได้แก่ แอมโมเนียมไพโรริดีนไดไทโอการ์บาเมต, แอล-ซิสทีอีน และ ไดเอทิลไดไทโอการ์บามิกแอซิด และ วิเคราะห์ปริมาณของสารหนูทั้ง 2 ชนิด ด้วยเทคนิคอินดักทีฟลีกัพเปิลพลาสมาออฟดิคัลอิมิสชันสเปกโทรเมตรี โดยศึกษาภาวะ ที่เหมาะสมของการแยกสารหนู ได้แก่ ชนิดของลิแกนด์ที่มีซัลเฟอร์เป็นองก์ประกอบที่เลือกใช้, pH, ความเข้มข้นของลิแกนด์, ปริมาณสำลี, อัตราการไหล และชนิดของตัวซะที่เหมาะสม จากนั้นจึงได้ทำการทดสอบกับตัวอย่างทางสิ่งแวดล้อม จากการ ทดลองพบว่าที่ pH 2, ความเข้มข้นของแอมโมเนียมไพโรริดีนไดไทโอการ์บาเมตที่ 0.1% และปริมาณสำลี 0.5 กรัม อาร์ เซนิก(III) สามารถถูกดูดซับไว้บนสำลีได้เกินกว่า 90% และอาร์เซนิก(V) ไม่ถูกดูดซับเอาไว้ จากนั้นจึงทดสอบการชะ อาร์เซนิก(III) ออกจากคอลัมน์โดยใช้ตัวชะคือ สาระลายผสม 4 M HNO3, 4 M HCl และ 0.5 M H2O2 อัตราส่วน 1 : 1 : 1 ปริมาตร 5 มิลลิลิตร สามารถชะอาร์เซนิก(III) ได้เปอร์เซ็นต์การก็นกลับที่ยอมรับได้ (>80%) วิธีการนี้ถูกนำไปทดสอบกับสารละลายผสมอาร์เซนิก(III) และอาร์เซนิก(V) ความเข้มข้น 10 – 1000 ไมโครกรัมต่อ ลิตร และตัวอย่างทางสิ่งแวดล้อม ผลการทดสอบสามารถแยกอาร์เซนิกทั้งสองสปีชีส์ได้อย่างสมบูรณ์ มีเปอร์เซ็นต์การก็นกลับ อยู่ที่ 83 - 118 % และก่าส่วนเบี่ยงเบนมาตรฐานที่ยอมรับได้



สาขาวิชา	เคมี	ลายมือชื่อนิสิต
ปีการศึกษา	2561	ลายมือชื่อ อ.ที่ปรึกษาหลัก
		ถายมือชื่อ อ.ที่ปรึกษาร่วม

5971908823 : MAJOR CHEMISTRY

KEYWORarsenic, speciation, solid phase extraction, ammoniumD:pyrrolidinedithiocarbarmate

Kavee Triteeyaprasert : SPECIATION OF ARSENIC USING SULFUR CONTAINING LIGAND AND COTTON WOOL BY ICP-OES. Advisor: Assoc. Prof. APICHAT IMYIM, Ph.D. Co-advisor: Assoc. Prof. NARONG PRAPHAIRAKSIT, Ph.D.

This research aimed to develop a method for speciation of arsenic species including As(III) and As(V) in environmental samples. Cotton wool and containing ligands including ammonium pyrrolidinedithiocarbarmate sulfur (APDC), L-cysteine and diethyldithiocarbamic acid were used in a solid phase extraction and determination of arsenic by using inductively coupled plasma optical emission spectrometry. The separation parameters were studied including pH, ligand concentration, cotton amount, type of eluents and flow rate. It was found that at pH 2, 0.1% APDC concentration and 0.5 g of cotton, As(III) could form complex with APDC (As(III) - APDC) and was separated from As(V) by using cotton column. The adsorption percentage was around 90%. Then As(III) was eluted by using 5 mL of 4 M HNO₃, 4 M HCl and 0.5 M H₂O₂ at a ratio of 1:1:1 as eluent. The proposed method was then used to perform a speciation analysis of arsenic in solutions containing As(III) and As(V) in the range of $10 - 1000 \ \mu g \ L^{-1}$. The results showed good recoveries of both arsenic species at 83 - 118% with acceptable relative standard deviation (%RSD). The proposed method was applied for arsenic speciation in environmental water samples. The results showed good recoveries and %RSD.



Field	of Study	Chemistry
гіеш	of Study:	Chemistry

2018

Academic Year: Student's Signature Advisor's Signature

Co-advisor's Signature

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The success of this research could not be achieved without support and assistance from my advisor, Associate Professor Dr. Apichat Imyim and my co – advisor Associate Professor Dr. Narong Praphairaksit. Also I would like to thank and pay my gratitude to Associate Professor Dr. Vudhichai Parasuk, Associate Professor Dr. Fungfa Unob and Assistant Professor Dr. Anawat Pinisakul for their valuable suggestion as committees and examiners.

In addition, I am grateful for the kindness and help from the Environmental Analysis Research Unit and Environmental Research Institute Chulalongkorn University.

Finally, I would like to thank my parents and friends for all their support throughout the period of this research.

Kavee Triteeyaprasert



TABLE OF CONTENTS

ABSTRACT (THAI) iii
ABSTRACT (ENGLISH)iv
ACKNOWLEDGEMENTSv
TABLE OF CONTENTSvi
LIST OF TABLES
LIST OF FIGURES
CHAPTER I INTRODUCTION
1.1 Objectives
1.2 Scope of this work
CHAPTER II THEORY AND LITERATURE REVIEWS
2.1 Arsenic
2.2 Determination of arsenic
2.3 Arsenic speciation
2.3.1 Chromatographic methods
2.3.2 Non – chromatographic methods
2.4 Principle of SPE
2.4.1 Retention of trace elements7
2.4.1.1 Adsorption
2.4.1.2 Chelation
2.4.1.3 Ion – pairing

2.4.1.4 Ion exchange9
2.4.2 Elution
2.5 Applications of SPE in the arsenic speciation9
CHAPTER III EXPERIMENTAL SECTION
3.1 Apparatus
3.1.1 Inductively coupled plasma optical emission spectrometer (ICP – OES) 14
3.1.2 pH Meter
3.2 Reagents
3.3 Preparation of solutions
3.3.1 Arsenic stock solution
3.3.2 Chelating agents15
3.3.3 Arsenic sample solution
3.4 Preparation of the cotton wool
3.4.1 Cotton wool pre – treatment
3.4.2 APDC – impregnated column
3.5 Optimization of adsorption parameters16
3.5.1 Effect of types of sulfur containing ligand on arsenic adsorption
3.5.2 Comparison of solid phase extraction methods16
3.5.2.1 Method I: mixing of APDC with arsenic solution prior to
separation by cotton wool16
3.5.2.2 Method II: impregnation of APDC onto cotton wool prior to
arsenic adsorption17

3.5.3 Effect of pH on arsenic adsorption17
3.5.4 Effect of APDC concentration on arsenic adsorption17
3.5.5 Effect of the amount of cotton wool17
3.5.6 Effect of adsorption flow rate17
3.6 Optimization of elution parameters
3.6.1 Types of eluents
3.6.2 Effect of elution flow rate
3.7 Separation procedure
3.8 Method validation
3.8.1 Effect of sample concentration on arsenic speciation
3.8.2 Application in real water samples19
CHAPTER IV RESULTS AND DISCUSSION
4.1 Optimization of adsorption parameters20
4.1.1 Effect of types of sulfur containing ligand on arsenic speciation20
4.1.2 Comparison of solid phase extraction methods
4.1.3 Effect of pH on arsenic adsorption25
4.1.4 Effect of APDC concentration on arsenic adsorption
4.1.5 Effect of the amount of cotton wool
4.1.6 Effect of adsorption flow rate
4.2 Optimization of elution parameters
4.2.1 Types of eluent

4.2.2 Effect of elution flow rate	.32
4.3 Method validation	.32
4.3.1 Effect of sample concentration	.32
4.3.3 Application to arsenic speciation in real water samples	.33
CHAPTER V CONCLUSION	.36
REFERENCES	.38
VITA	.43



Chulalongkorn University

LIST OF TABLES

Page

Table 1 Typical detection limits (DL) of arsenic analysis by various techniques [[5]	
(μg L ⁻¹)	5
Table 2 ICP – OES conditions for the determination of As(III)	.14
Table 3 Chemical list	.15
Table 4 The effect of flow rate on As(III) adsorption	.29
Table 5 List of eluents that used for As(III) elution	.31
Table 6 Emission of signal from sulfur content	.31
Table 7 The dependence of As(III) recoveries on eluent flow rates	.32
Table 8 % recovery of As(III) and As(V) of mixed solution	.33
Table 9 Sample name and sources	.34
Table 10 Determination of As(III) and As(V) in water samples	.35



LIST OF FIGURES

Figure 1. Some important compounds and their respective chemicals structures [3]4
Figure 2. Schematic representation of processes involved in the SPE [14]7
Figure 3. Schematic representation for selective separation of arsenic species in water
using SBAE, HY - Fe and HY - AgCl resins [7]10
Figure 4. The distribution of iAs and oAs species as a function of pH values [7]11
Figure 5. Structure of sulfur containing ligand. a) APDC; b) L- cysteine; c)
diethyldithiocarbamic acid
Figure 6. Adsorption percentages of As(III) and As(V) on cotton wool using different
types of sulfur containing ligand
Figure 7. Chemical structure of cotton [39]22
Figure 8. Schematic of As(III) – APDC complexation in acidic condition22
Figure 9. Chemical forms of inorganic As(V)
Figure 10. Schematic of As(III) – cysteine complex [40]
Figure 11. Structure of As(III) and diethyldithiocarbamic acid complex [42]24
Figure 12. Adsorption efficiency between Method I and Method II25
Figure 13. Effect of pH on the adsorption of As(III) and As(V) on the cotton wool.
Condition: 1% w/v APDC26
Figure 14. Effect of APDC concentration on arsenic adsorption27
Figure 15. Effect of pH on the adsorption of As(III) and As(V) on the cotton wool28

T .	11		C .1		C		1		•	1	, •	20
HIGHTP	16	HTTPCT	of the	amount	ot co	offon	WOOL	on	arcente	adent	ntion	· / X
IIguic	10.	LIICCI	or the	amount		Juon	W 001	UII.	anseme	ausor	puon	
0											1	



CHAPTER I

INTRODUCTION

Global industrialization has continually led to increasing use of metals and metalloids around the world. Arsenic is one of the metalloids being used in various industries. Arsenic can be released into environment through many processes such as volcanic eruption, mining, usage of pesticides, herbicides and wood preservatives. Human can recieve arsenic by drinking contaminated water, using contaminated water in food preparation, irrigation of food crops, eating contaminated food and smoking tobacco. Exposure to arsenic even at low concentration can cause a variety of adverse health effects [1]. The maximum permissible concentration of arsenic in drinking water is 50 μ g L⁻¹ and the recommended value by EPA and WHO is 10 μ g L⁻¹[2]. Conventional analytical methods which allow determining arsenic level in samples can only measure its total concentration. However, the toxicity of arsenic mainly depends on its chemical form such as inorganic compound and organic compound. Thus, accurate and sensitive methods for speciation of arsenic are required for obtaining important information on its toxicity.

Determination of arsenic in environment samples such as water is very important for evaluating its contamination level in environment as well as human exposure. Inductively coupled plasma optical emission spectrometry (ICP – OES) is a useful spectrometric method for the direct determination of total arsenic level. However, appropriate separation and/or preconcentration methods, such as solvent extraction, ion exchange, chromatography and solid phase extraction, are typically required to obtain the separation of arsenic species prior to its determination.

Chromatographic techniques combined with spectroscopic techniques commonly provide excellent speciation capability and sensitivity but high instrumentation cost and highly trained professionals are required. Alternatively, solid phase extraction is an effective method for the separation and preconcentration of trace metal ions. Many sorbents were employed for these purposes.

Cotton fiber is one of the materials that can be used as a sorbent for analytical purpose. Cotton fiber is a cheap and easy to use material. However, the cotton fiber alone has limited affinity towards metal ions. Therefore, chelating agents play important role to improve the adsorbtivity of this material. Sulfur containing ligands are chelating agent that has been widely used for the separation and preconcentration of arsenic ions because of its selectivity to interact with arsenic ion.

In this work we aim to combine the advantages of cotton wool and sulfur containing ligand to the preconcentration and speciation analysis of inorganic arsenic species, i.e. As(III) and As(V) in aqueous solutions and environment samples using ICP – OES.

1.1 Objectives

1. To develop a method for the speciation of inorganic arsenic (As(III) and As(V)) using a cotton wool modified with sulfur containing ligand, followed by determination by ICP – OES.

2. To apply the developed method for the arsenic speciation in real samples.

1.2 Scope of this work

This work was focused on developing a method for the speciation of inorganic As species in aqueous solution using sulfur containing ligand attached on cotton wool followed by determination by ICP - OES.

Three types of sulfur containing ligands were used for complexation with arsenic and then adsorbed onto cotton fiber to carry out the arsenic speciation. The parameters affecting speciation of arsenic e.g. pH, ligand concentration and flow rate were optimized. The method was later validated by speciation of arsenic in prepared solution. The recovery and relative standard deviation were used to evaluate accuracy and precision of the method. Finally, the developed method was used for the speciation analysis of As(III) and As(V) in real samples.



CHAPTER II

THEORY AND LITERATURE REVIEWS

2.1 Arsenic

Arsenic (As) is a metalloid and ubiquitous element in the environment. It is well known as an element of both environmental and health concerns due to its toxicity. It is released to environment through natural processes mainly from volcanic eruption or human activities such as mining, usage of pesticides, herbicides and wood preservatives. Arsenic is present in the environment in four oxidation states: +5, +3, 0 and -3, and can be classified into two categories: organic and inorganic compounds. Some important compounds of arsenic are shown in Figure 1 [3]. The toxicity mostly depends on the chemical forms of arsenic, i.e. inorganic trivalent arsenic (As(III)) that is more toxic than the pentavalent one, (As(V)) and inorganic arsenic species are more toxic than their organic species [4]. Forms of arsenic in environment depend on the physical, chemical and biological processes such as oxidation and reduction processes, adsorption/desorption, precipitation and microbiological processes.

2.2 Determination of arsenic

There are a number of factors that influence the selection of arsenic determination technique, for example, type of sample, concentration level, contamination of sample, equipment, number of samples, experience in instrumentation and limit of detection (LOD). The selection of these methods plays a key role in obtaining a good accuracy and precision of data. The commonly used techniques for arsenic determination are graphite furnace atomic absorption spectrometry (GF – AAS), hydride generation atomic absorption spectrometry (HG – AAS), inductively coupled plasma optical emission spectrometry (ICP – OES) and inductively coupled plasma mass spectrometry (ICP – MS).

AAS is a spectroanalytical technique for elemental determination based on the adsorption of electromagnetic radiation (EMR) by free atoms. The most common atomizers used for arsenic determination are graphite furnace (GF – AAS) which use electricity and hydride generation (HG – AAS) which is based on the generation of volatile hydride compound of arsenic [5].

ICP – OES has also been used for routine multi element analysis by monitoring emission spectral of the elements of interest using plasma as excitation source [6]. On the other hand, ICP – MS is a popular technique that can determine elements based on the measurment of their mass to charge ratios using a mass spectrometer.



Figure 1. Some important compounds and their respective chemicals structures [3].

The typical detection limits (DL) of these techniques are shown in Table 1.

Table 1 Typical detection limits (DL) of arsenic analysis by various techniques [[5] $(\mu g L^{-1})$

Techniques	GF – AAS	HG – AAS	ICP – OES	ICP – MS
DL	0.05	0.03	2	0.0006

The above DL's are based on a 98% confidence level 3 (3 standard deviations). All detection limits are given in $\mu g m L^{\cdot 1}$ and were determined using standards in dilute aqueous solution.

As mentioned above, all of these methods can only determine total arsenic concentration with no regards on its chemical forms. The speciation of arsenic species cannot be obtained using any of these techniques alone and thus, additional tools such as separation technique have to be employed to make speciation possible.

2.3 Arsenic speciation

In recent years, various methodologies have been developed for speciation of arsenic in samples. The majority of which is based on chromatography techniques that use phase column to separate arsenic species in samples. Moreover, non – chromatography methods which include many techniques like liquid – liquid extraction, hydride generation techniques and solid phase extraction have been developed as well.

2.3.1 Chromatographic methods

Various chromatographic methods have been used for arsenic speciation analysis. These include liquid chromatography (LC), high performance liquid chromatography (HPLC) and ion chromatography (IC). These techniques are commonly coupled to the suitable and sensitive determination techniques such as ICP - MS or HG - AAS [7]. HPLC - ICP - MS is a widely used technique for arsenic speciation because it gives the advantages of both outstanding separation and superior sensitivity [8]. Methods using HPLC equipped with reversed phase column and IC equipped with ion exchange columns, coupled with ICP – MS, are widely used. The IC method is suitable for the separation of $A_{s}(III)$, $A_{s}(V)$, monomethyl arsenic acid (MMAA) and dimethyl arsenic acid (DMAA) or arsenosugars, but it is tough to separate large organoarsenic compounds [8]. Arsenics have various ionic characteristics, which are pH dependent. The anionic species such as H₃AsO₃ (As(III)), H_3AsO_4 (As(V)), DMAA and MMAA can be separated by using anion exchange HPLC. Cation exchange can be used to separate the arsenobetaine (AsB), arsenochlorine (AsC), tetramethylarsonium (TeMA) and trimethylarsine oxide (TMAO) [9]. Narukawa et al. [8] used HPLC - ICP - MS combined with reversed phase

octadecyl group packing column to separate and determine 8 species of arsenic, As(III), As(V), MMAA, DMAA, TMAO, TeMA, AsB and AsC. It was shown that five arsenic species including As(III), As(V), MMAA, DMAA and AsB were completely resolved with the use of 10 mmol L^{-1} sodium 1 – butanesulfonate, 4 mmol L^{-1} malonic acid, 4 mmol L^{-1} tetramethylammonium hydroxide, 5 mmol L^{-1} ammonium dihydrogenphosphate and 0.05% methanol as an eluent.

All of these techniques provide excellent speciation capability and sensitivity but costly instrumentation and highly trained professionals are inevitable.

2.3.2 Non – chromatographic methods

As costly instrumentation, extensive skill and lengthy analysis time are usually associated with chromatography – based speciation method, several attempts have been made to develop a simple, fast and cheap analytical method to accomplish such task.

HG – AAS can be used as a tool for arsenic speciation with its proven high sensitivity and selectivity for arsenic quantification [10]. The methodology is based on different behaviors of arsenic species under different atomization conditions. As(III) was determined by using a reductant such as sodium borohydride (NaBH₄) to form arsine (AsH₃), whereas the determination of total As was performed by pre – reduction of As(V) to As(III) with mixture of potassium iodide and ascorbic acid. The As(V) concentration was obtained from the difference between As(III) and total As [11].

Liquid – liquid extraction (LLE) is another often used separation technique, which is based on the different solubility of the analytes in the immiscible solvents. Normally, one of the solvents is water or an aqueous mixture and the other is a non - polar organic liquid. Kamada [12] demonstrated that As(III), upon complexation with ammonium pyrolidinedithiocarbamate (APDC) could be extracted from As(V) into methyl isobutyl ketone (MIBK) or nitrobenzene.

Solid phase extraction (SPE) is the technique based on interaction between two phases which are liquid phase (samples) and solid phase (adsorbent). The analytes were isolated from matrices according to their physical and chemical properties. SPE provides separation and preconcentration capability, cheap and low chemical consumption and environmental friendliness [13]. SPE used different As properties to isolate the As species such as As(V), present in oxyanion form, from As(III) by using anion exchange resin. Conventional sorbent such as ion exchange resin, mesoporous silica and glass, have been developed for inorganic arsenic speciation. The SPE method was developed for onsite speciation of inorganic arsenic [13].

2.4 Principle of SPE

The basic principle of SPE is similar to that of LLE. The separation is based on a partitioning of analytes between liquid phase (sample matrix) and solid phase (adsorbent) [14]. This technique allows the separation and preconcentration of analytes from matrix sample by adsorption on an adsorbent. Normally, SPE consist of three to four steps as shown in Figure 2.



Figure 2. Schematic representation of processes involved in the SPE [14].

The first step is washing or conditioning step. In this step, the adsorbent should be washed using an appropriate solvent, followed by the same solvent as the sample. The proposed of this step is to wet the adsorbent and remove impurities contained in the sorbing material.

The next step is the loading of the sample. The sample solution was passed through the adsorbent. The loading parameters depend on the system used and the interaction between analytes and adsorbent.

The third step is washing step. The adsorbent is washed with an appropriate solvent. The solvent should not have interfered or eluted the analyte on the adsorbent at this point. This step is intended for the elimination of matrix components that have been retained by the solid sorbent.

The fourth step is the elution of the interested analyte by suitable eluent without removing adsorbed matrix components. The selection of eluent should be aware to not have any undesirable effect on the determination technique.

2.4.1 Retention of trace elements

The retention mechanism of trace elements mainly depends on the nature of those elements as well as the nature of adsorbent. Such mechanism may include adsorption, chelation, ion – paring and ion exchange.

2.4.1.1 Adsorption

Adsorption is a process in which elements or molecules are accumulated on an adsorbent. The adsorption of analytes can occur in 2 ways which are physical adsorption, such as Van der Waals forces and electrostatic forces and chemical adsorption, such as covalent bonds. This process depends on the reaction between analyte and adsorbent [15].

2.4.1.2 Chelation

Various functional group atoms are capable of chelating with trace elements. The atoms commonly used are nitrogen (N) present in amines, azo groups, amides and nitriles, oxygen (O) present in carboxylic, hydroxyl, phenolic or ether and sulfur (S) present in thiols, thiocarbamates and thioethers. The selection of the ligand towards trace elements depends on the nature of functional group. The inorganic cations may be classified into 3 groups [14]:

- Hard cations group

This group is preferred to react via electrostatic interactions. This group includes alkaline and alkaline - earth metals such as Ca(II), Mg(II) and Na(I) that form complexes with only hard ligands (O).

- Intermediate cations group

These cations have properties between hard and soft cations. This group includes Fe(II), Co(II), Ni(II), Cu(II), Zn(II), Pb(II) and Mn(II). They tend to form a complex with both hard and soft ligands.

- Soft cations group

These cations possess a strong affinity for borderline (N) and soft (S) ligands and tend to form covalent bonds. As(III) was classified in this group.

For soft metals, the order of donor atom affinity is S > N > O. Complexing agents may be directly mixed with the sample for complexation with analytes, the chelates being retained on proper adsorbent. An alternative choice is introducing the functional group into the sorbent. Binding of metal ions to the chelate functionality is dependent on various factors such as charge and size of the analyte, character of metal ion, properties of the ligand, buffering conditions and nature of the solid support [14].

2.4.1.3 Ion – pairing

This mechanism is usually imposed by the non – polar adsorbent. Ion – pair reagent has both non – polar part and polar part, which non – polar parts interacts with the adsorbent and the polar part forms an ion - pair with the ionic species. Commonly, ion - pair reagents e.g. quaternary alkyltriethylamine, trimethylamine (TEA), and alkyl sulfonate.

2.4.1.4 Ion exchange

Ion - exchange sorbents can be divided in 2 groups which are cationic functional groups, which exchange positively charged ions or anionic functional groups which exchange negatively charged ones. Functional groups of ion – exchange are sulfonic acid for strong cation exchange and carboxylic acid group for weak cation exchange. Quaternary amines are functional groups for strong anion exchange, while primary, secondary and tertiary amines are for weak anion exchange. Strong ion exchange sites could work at any pH, while weak sites are only effective at pH values greater or less than the pK_a. Retention of analyte on ion - exchangers depends on the distribution ratio of the ion on the adsorbent, the stability constants of the complexes, the kinetics and the presence of interference ions. Ion exchanges are of limited use for speciation of trace elements due to the low selectivity and the retention of major ions.

2.4.2 Elution

The same kind of interactions usually occurs during the elution step. The eluent must be precisely picked to confirm higher affinity towards the target species. If the retention on adsorbent is due to chelation, the eluent may be contained chelating agent that could form stronger complex with analyte. Acid is commonly used as eluent due to the pH dependence of SPE allows the use of acids for elution of analyte. The acid will disrupt the complex and release the analyte from the adsorbent.

If the analyte is more highly adsorbed on the adsorbent than the interference compounds, a washing step by using a moderate elution strength eluent is advisable prior to the elution step [14].

2.5 Applications of SPE in the arsenic speciation

In recent years, many methodologies involving SPE have been developed for speciation of arsenic in samples. Various type of materials have been used as solid support in such SPE systems.

Anion exchange resin is a conventional sorbent which has been employed to separate As. It is well known that As(V) is present in oxyanion form $(H_2AsO_4^-, HAsO_4^{2-} \text{ and } AsO_4^{3-})$ that could interact with anion exchange resin while As(III) does not [7]. Based on this preferential interaction, a number of studies have been conducted to achieve the separation and preconcentration of As species.

Issa et al. [7, 16] studied the arsenic speciation by using three types of resin which include a strong base anion exchange resin (SBAE), hybrid (HY) resin iron (HY – Fe) and hybrid (HY) resin silver chloride (HY – AgCl). The selective separation of these arsenic species was presented in Figure 3.



Figure 3. Schematic representation for selective separation of arsenic species in water using SBAE, HY - Fe and HY - AgCl resins [7].

It was found that the adsorption of different arsenic species depend on the pH value. The distribution of inorganic As (iAs) and organic As (oAs) species as a function of pH values are shown in Figure 4. At pH < 8.0, the neutral form of As(III) was not bonded with SBAE, thus As(III) can be separated from As(V) and oAs. Meanwhile, HY – Fe can adsorb As(III), As(V) and MMAs(V) with no affinity toward DMAs(V), allowing the direct determination of this particular species. All inorganic arsenic species are adsorbed by HY – AgCl resin, the determination of organic arsenic species was performed in the eluent. ICP – MS and HG – AAS were employed for the determination of the eluted As species.



Figure 4. The distribution of iAs and oAs species as a function of pH values [7].

Thongkhao and Imyim [17] developed a simple and selective method using two types of solid phase materials including a strong base anion exchange resin (SBAE) and iron – copper binary oxide coupled along with ICP – OES detection for the speciation of water – soluble arsenic (As(III), As(V) and DMA). Results indicated that As(V) could be adsorbed on SBAE at pH 11 while As(III) and DMA were not retained. For Fe – Cu binary oxide sorbent, the separation of DMA from As(III) and As(V) was attained at pH 11.

However, for As(III) that does not interact with anion exchange resin because it is present in neutral form (H_3AsO_3), functional materials have been employed to separate As(III) from other As species.

Jiang et al. [18] used APDC modified activated carbon (APDC – AC) as solid support for speciation of As(III). Under optimal condition, As(III) could be absorbed by APDC – AC while As(V) was not. The adsorption conditions optimized were pH, flow rate and desorption condition to obtain the maximum adsorption of As species. Results showed the maximum adsorption of As(III) on APDC – AC at pH 2 and a flow rate of 0.8 mL min⁻¹. Then 2 mL of 0.1 mol L⁻¹ HNO₃ was employed for the elution of As(III) adsorbed in the column. The recovery As(III) was around 90%.

Chen et al. [19] prepared a carbon nanofibers (CNFs) microcolumn to separate As species. CNFs microcolumn was treated before use by passing 0.5 mol L^{-1} NH₃·H₂O and deionized water through the column, and pH was adjusted by using

buffer solution. A different As species sample solution was prepared with 1.0 mL of 5.0 mg mL⁻¹ APDC and the pH value was adjusted with $NH_3 \cdot H_2O$ and HNO_3 . As(III) was separated from As(V) by using CNFs. The parameters involved in the separation and determination of As(III) and As(V) were evaluated. The optimal pH was 2.0 and 30 mL of 0.5 mol L⁻¹ NH_3 was used as eluent.

Besides the previously described CNFs, other carbon sorbents were used for the separation and preconcentration of metals ions [20] as well such as graphitized carbons and fullerenes [21-25].

Many studies have shown that cellulosic materials can adsorb metal ions, especially with the introduction of functional groups therein. These studies were focused on the development of cellulosic materials as effective and cheap sorbents for the elimination of metal ions.

A modified thiol cotton fiber (TCF) was developed by Yu et al. [26-28] for the quantitative adsorption of trace heavy metals. TCF was prepared by impregnation of mercaptoacetic acid solution on fat – free cotton. The adsorption efficiency of TCF for these ions depends on the affinity of thiol group toward the ions and their complexing reactions in the solution. The method was also applied for determination of ultra-trace Au both in soluble and suspended phase in natural water, within the concentration range of 0.51 to 67.82 ng L⁻¹. The recovery of Au was 80 – 95%. Yu, Liu and Jin [29] also prepared TCF from thioglycollic acid for the determination of trace As(III), As(V), Sb(III), Sb(V), Se(IV), Se(VI), Te(IV) and Te(VI) in water. It was found that TCF efficiently adsorb only As(III), Sb(III), Se(IV) and Te(IV), making it a possible tool for speciation of these ions. Marin et al. [30] determined Se in 65 geological reference materials of different origins by GFAAS following its reduction to Se(IV) and isolation from matrix on thiol cotton fiber. They found the agreement between results from their method and published data satisfactory. The %RSD of the results varied from 2.6 – 17.7%. The detection limit was 0.02 μ g g⁻¹.

There are other materials that have been modified with thiol ligand. For instance, Yang et al. [31] modified chitin nanofibers by using cysteine as an adsorbent materials for As(III) removal. Yu et al. [32] used APDC to form complex with Te(IV) under acidic condition. The Te(IV) complex was preferentially retained on a non – polar Isolute silica – based octadecyl (C – 18) sorpbent containing solid – phase extraction cartridge. The method was applied for Te(IV) and Te(VI) speciation. The spiked recovery of Te(IV) at 86.0 – 108% and Te(VI) at 87.1 – 97.4%, were achieved.

Moghimi [33] prepared an alumina phase loaded with APDC based on chemical binding and physical adsorption approaches. Hg(II) was found to show the highest affinity towards extraction by these alumina phases. Qu et al. [34] prepared two kinds of adsorbents include chitosan-coated cotton fiber Schiff – base bond (SCCH and C – N single bond (RCCH) for adsorbtion of Au(III) ions from aqueous solution. It was demonstrated that the SCCH and RCCH fibers displayed strong affinity for gold in the solution and both exhibited 100% selectivity for the gold in the presence of Ni(II), Cd(II), Zn(II), Co(II), and Mn(II). Chai et al. [35] prepared thiol - functionalized

spent grain (TFSG) by functionalization of spent grain (SG) using thioglycollic acid in N,N - dimethylformamide (DMF) medium. TFSG demonstrated the adsorption capacity for Zn(II) was increased from 125.76 mg g^{-1} of SG to 227.37 mg g^{-1} of TFSG.

Amino groups were another type of ligand that had been used for metal speciation. Zang et al. [36, 37] prepared a sorbent by grafting amino – terminated hyperbranched polymer to cotton fibers and used it to adsorb heavy metal ions. The adsorption capacity obtained for Cu(II) and Pb(II) were up to 16.1 mg g⁻¹ and 13.4 mg g⁻¹ respectively.

This work was focused on developing a method for the speciation of inorganic As species in aqueous solution using 3 types of sulfur containing ligand including APDC, L – cysteine and diethyldithiocarbamic acid attached on cotton wool followed by determination by ICP – OES. The parameters affecting speciation of arsenic e.g. pH, ligand concentration and flow rate were studied. The method was validated by speciation of arsenic in sample solution and applied for arsenic speciation in real samples. Recovery and relative standard deviation were used to evaluate accuracy and precision of the method.



CHAPTER III

EXPERIMENTAL SECTION

3.1 Apparatus

3.1.1 Inductively coupled plasma optical emission spectrometer (ICP – OES)

ICP - OES model PQ 9000 elite (Analytik jena) was used to determine arsenic concentration. The operating conditions are listed in Table 2.

Table 2 ICP – OE	S conditions for the	determination	of As(III)
	interesting and a second s		5

Operation parameters	
Wavelenght (As)	188.979
RF power (W)	1200
Plasma gas flow (L min ⁻¹)	12.0
Nebulizer gas flow (L min ⁻¹)	0.5
Viewing direction	Axial
Read time (s)	5.0
Sample uptake rate (mL min ⁻¹)	1.0
Repetition	3
312 pH Meter	

3.1.2 pH Meter

A pH meter model Terminal 740 (WTW) was used for all pH measurements.

3.2 Reagents

All chemicals were ACS grade and were listed in Table 3.

Table 3 Chemical list

Chemicals	Supplier
Ammonium pyrrolidinedithiocarbamate	Sigma
L - cysteine	Sigma
Diethyldithiocarbamic acid	Sigma
Cotton wool	Ambulance
Hydrochloric acid, 37%	JT Baker
Hydrogenperoxide, 30%	Merck
Nitric acid, 65%	Merck
Single standard As(V) (1000 mg L ⁻¹)	Merck
Sodium arsenite	Kemaus
Sodium hydroxide	Mallinckrodt

3.3 Preparation of solutions

3.3.1 Arsenic stock solution

Stock solution of As(V) 1000 mg L⁻¹ was purchased from Merck KGaA (Darmstadt, Germany).

As(III) stock solution 1000 mg L^{-1} was prepared by dissolving 0.1733 g of sodium arsenite in 3% HCl 100 ml. Then, As working standard solutions were prepared by stepwise dilution of As stock solutions to the required concentrations with de – ionized water.

3.3.2 Chelating agents

Sulfur containing ligand solutions were prepared daily by dissolving the designated amount of each ligand, including of APDC, L - cysteine and diethyldithiocarbamic acid in de -ionized water.

3.3.3 Arsenic sample solution

- As(III) sample solution

As(III) 1 mg L^{-1} solution was prepared by diluting 1000 mg L^{-1} As(III) stock solution to 1 mg L^{-1} and adjusted to the desired pH with 1 M HCl or 1 M NaOH.

- As(V) sample solution

As(V) 1 mg L^{-1} solution was prepared by diluting 1000 mg L^{-1} As(V) stock solution to 1 mg L^{-1} and adjusted to desired pH with 1 M HCl or 1 M NaOH.

- As(III) and As(V)mixture solution

As(III) and As(V) mixture 1 mg L^{-1} solution was prepared by mixing 0.05 mL of 1000 mg L^{-1} As(III) and As(V) stock solution in a 50 mL volumetric flask. The mixture was then adjusted to the desired pH with 1 M HCl or 1 M NaOH and made up with de – ionized water.

3.4 Preparation of the cotton wool

3.4.1 Cotton wool pre - treatment

The pre – treatment of cotton wool was adopted from Zang et al. [36]. Briefly, the cotton wool was scoured by steeping them in NaOH 2% wt, with a ratio of 1 ± 50 , at 95 °C for 90 minutes. After that the cotton wool was washed with de - ionized water several times to remove NaOH, and then dried in oven at 90 °C overnight. Finally, the treated cotton wool was packed into the medical syringe which was used as an extraction column.

3.4.2 APDC – impregnated column

An extraction column was prepared by packing 0.5 g of treated cotton wool into medical syringe. The tip of syringe was sealed with parafilm. Then 5 mL of 1% APDC solution was added into the syringe. The cotton wool was soaked for three days and the solution was removed through the tip after that.

3.5 Optimization of adsorption parameters

3.5.1 Effect of types of sulfur containing ligand on arsenic adsorption

Three types of sulfur containing ligand were investigated for arsenic speciation. Initially 1 mg L⁻¹ of As(III) sample solution was adjusted to pH 2. Then 10 mL of this solution was mixed with 0.5 mL of 1% (w/v) sulfur containing ligand solutions including APDC, L - cysteine and dithiocabamic acid. The mixtures were shaken for 30 minutes at 150 rpm. The solutions were then allow to flow through 0.5 g cotton wool in syringe by means of gravity. The remaining solution on the cotton wool was displaced using the plunger and collected altogether. The As(III) concentrations in the solution were determined by ICP – OES. As(V) sample solution was processed in the same manner as As(III).

3.5.2 Comparison of solid phase extraction methods

This experiment compared two extraction methods which are Method I: mixing of APDC with arsenic solution prior to separation by cotton wool and Method II: impregnation of APDC onto cotton wool prior to arsenic adsorption. The efficiency of the two methods were compared by their percentages of arsenic adsorption.

3.5.2.1 Method I: mixing of APDC with arsenic solution prior to separation by cotton wool

This method used the extraction column from 3.4.1. The adsorption procedure was the same as described in section 3.5.1 using 1% APDC as sulfur containing ligand.

3.5.2.2 Method II: impregnation of APDC onto cotton wool prior to arsenic adsorption

The 1 mg L^{-1} As(III) sample solution was adjusted to pH 2. Then 10 mL of the solution was passed through the APDC – impregnated column obtained from section 3.4.2 by means of gravity. The retained solution was collected by using the plunger. The arsenic was determined by ICP – OES and As(V) was processed similarly to those of As(III).

3.5.3 Effect of pH on arsenic adsorption

The 10 mL of 1 mg L^{-1} As(III) model solution was adjusted to pH to 2, 3, 4, 5, and 6 with 1 M HCl and 1 M NaOH. Then each of the sample solution was mixed with 0.5 mL of 1% selected sulfur containing ligand solution. The adsorption procedure and As determination were the same as those described in 3.5.1

3.5.4 Effect of APDC concentration on arsenic adsorption

The effect of APDC concentration on arsenic adsorption was studied by adding 0.5 mL of APDC solution in the range of 0.01 - 1% w/v into the sample solution. The adsorption process was the same as those described 3.5.1.

3.5.5 Effect of the amount of cotton wool

The effect of the amount of cotton wool on arsenic adsorption was examined by using 1 mg L^{-1} As(III) sample solution and 1 mg L^{-1} As(V) sample solution. The solutions were conditioned by using the optimal pH and APDC concentration from 3.5.3 and 3.5.4. The amount of cotton wool used was varied in the range of 0.1 – 0.5 g.

3.5.6 Effect of adsorption flow rate

To evaluate the effect of flow rate on arsenic adsorption, 10 mL of 1 mg L⁻¹ As(III) sample solution was adjusted to pH 2. Then 0.5 mL of 0.1% APDC was mixed with sample solution to form As(III) – APDC complex. The As(III) – APDC solution was passed through 0.5 g cotton wool column at the flow rate between 1 – 5 mL min⁻¹ via peristaltic pump. After the solution came out of column, 1 mL of de – ionized water was added to the column to expel all the remaining As(III) – APDC solution out of the column and the whole solution was subjected for As determination.

3.6 Optimization of elution parameters

3.6.1 Types of eluents

As(III) – APDC solution was eluted by various eluents include 1 M HNO₃, 1 M HCl, 1 M NaOH, 1 M HNO₃ in 10% methanol, 1 M HCl in 10% methanol, 1 M HCl in 2% H₂O₂, 4 M HNO₃ and 0.5 M H₂O₂, 4 M HCl and 0.5 M H₂O₂ and 4 M HNO₃, 4 M HCl and 0.5 M H₂O₂. The efficiency of eluents was assessed by %recoveries of As(III) eluted by using 5 mL of each eluent by means of gravity. After the eluent was passed through the column, 4 mL of de – ionized water was added to the column and the retained solution in the cotton wool was displaced by the plunger and collected. The arsenic concentrations in the solution were then determined by ICP – OES.

3.6.2 Effect of elution flow rate

The effect of elution flow rate was investigated using the best eluent obtained from 3.6.1. As(III) was eluted by using 5 mL of eluent at the flow rate ranging from 1 - 5 mL min⁻¹. Then 4 mL of de –ionized water was added to column and the plunger was used to push the retained solution out of the column. The combined solution was determined for the arsenic concentration by ICP – OES.

3.7 Separation procedure

The optimized adsorption condition was used for arsenic speciation. The 10 mL of solution containing 1 mg L^{-1} As(III) and 1 mg L^{-1} As(V) at desired pH was initially mixed with 0.5 mL APDC. The mixture was shaken at 150 rpm for 30 minutes. The mixture was subsequently flown through 0.5 g cotton wool column via peristaltic pump at the flow rate of 5 mL min⁻¹. Then 1 mL of de – ionized water was added to the column. The As(V) was determined in the collected solution.

For As(III) determination, 5 mL of the selected eluent was added to the column at the flow rate of 1 mL min⁻¹. Finally, 4 mL of de – ionized water was added to column and the remaining solution in the column was collected using the plunger.

3.8 Method validation

In order to validate the developed method, the precision of the repeated measurements from this method was acquired as the relative standard deviation (%RSD). Recoveries were investigated by using the sample solution containing spiked As(III) and As(V).

3.8.1 Effect of sample concentration on arsenic speciation

The proposed method was applied for As(III) and As(V) speciation. The concentration of As(III) and As(V) mixed solution was varied in the range of 10 –

1000 μ g L⁻¹. The solution was then treated in accordance with the procedure described in section 3.7. The As(III) and As(V) concentrations were determined using ICP - OES and the efficiency of the method was evaluated by arsenic recoveries and %RSD.

3.8.2 Application in real water samples

The validated method was applied to the determination of As(III) and As(V) in the real water samples. The collected samples were filtrated through 0.45 μ m membrane filter. Speciation procedure was the same as those described in section 3.7. The recoveries of spikes of the As(III) and As(V) were also studied.



CHAPTER IV

RESULTS AND DISCUSSION

In this chapter, the results are divided into 3 parts including (i) the optimization of adsorption parameters, (ii) the optimization of elution parameters and (iii) the method validation and application for arsenic speciation analysis in water samples.

4.1 Optimization of adsorption parameters

In this section, the key parameters that affect the adsorption efficiency of As(III) and As(V) on cotton wool were investigated as followed.

4.1.1 Effect of types of sulfur containing ligand on arsenic speciation

To evaluate a suitable sulfur containing ligand for arsenic speciation, APDC, L – cysteine and diethyldithiocarbamic acid were prepared at a concentration of 1% (w/v). Then 0.5 mL of each sulfur containing ligand solution was mixed with 10 mL of 1 mg L⁻¹ As(III) or As(V). The solutions were passed through the untreated cotton wool column and the amount of arsenic in the solution was determined by ICP - OES. The percentage of adsorption (%adsorption) of arsenic was calculated from the difference between the initial concentration (C_i) of arsenic and the concentration after passing through the cotton wool (C_f) as expressed by Equation 3.1.

%adsorption =
$$\frac{C_i - C_f}{C_i} \times 100$$
(3.1)

The three types of sulfur containing ligand structure were shown in Figure 5.



Figure 5. Structure of sulfur containing ligand. a) APDC; b) L- cysteine; c) diethyldithiocarbamic acid

Based on previous studies, the suitable pH range for adsorption of arsenic by using APDC as sulfur containing ligand is 1.0 - 3.0 [2, 10, 19, 28]. Thus, pH 2 was selected for evaluation of the As adsorption efficiency of each sulfur containing ligand. The results are shown in Figure 6. APDC displayed the highest adsorption efficiency of As on the cotton wool while L – cysteine and diethyldithiocarbamic acid did not produce satisfactory results. Also, it is clearly seen that, with the use of APDC, the adsorption of As(III) on the cotton wool was significantly higher than that of As(V). For the blank test using arsenic solution without ligand, the results showed that both As(III) and As(V) could not be retained on this cotton wool at pH 2.



Figure 6. Adsorption percentages of As(III) and As(V) on cotton wool using different types of sulfur containing ligand.

As(III) is present as a neutral species in the form of arsenous acid (H_3AsO_3) at pH values lower than 8.0 and its successive acid dissociation constant (pK_a) are shown in Equation 3.2 - 3.4 [38].

$H_3AsO_3 \rightleftharpoons H^+ + H_2AsO_3^-$	$pK_{a1} = 9.23$	(3.2)
$H_2AsO^- \rightleftharpoons H^+ + HAsO_3^{2-}$	$pK_{a2} = 12.10$	(3.3)
$HAsO_3^{2-} \rightleftharpoons H^+ + AsO_3^{3-}$	$pK_{a3} = 13.41$	(3.4)

For As(V), it exists in neutral water as monovalent or divalent $(H_2AsO_4^- \text{ and } HAsO_4^{2^-})$. The pK_a of As(V) are shown in Equation 3.5 - 3.7 [38].

$H_3AsO_4 \rightleftharpoons H^+ + H_2AsO_4^-$	$pK_{a1} = 2.3(3.5)$
$H_2AsO^- \rightleftharpoons H^+ + HAsO_4^{2-}$	$pK_{a2} = 6.8(3.6)$
$HAsO_4^{2-} \rightleftharpoons H^+ + AsO_4^{3-}$	$pK_{a3} = 11.60(3.7)$

As can be seen, under acidic condition as used herein, As(III) and As(V) are present in totally different species. This is the key point to optimize the speciation condition for As(III) and As(V). The neutral form of As(III) tends to form hydrophobic complex with APDC. On the other hand, As(V) could not be complexed with APDC because literally they are all negatively charged [18].

The chemical compositions of cotton wool may affect the adsorption of As(III) – APDC complex. Cotton fiber is a cellulose based materials, which is the most abundant biopolymer in nature. This material has characteristic properties such as excellent hydrophilicity, biocompatibility and biodegradability [34]. Cotton fibers are composed of mostly α – cellulose (88.0 – 96.5%). The other chemical compositions are non – cellulosic substance which include proteins (1.0 – 1.9%), waxes (0.4 – 1.2%), pectins (0.4 – 1.2%), inorganics (0.7 – 1.6%), and other substances (0.5 – 8.0%) [39]. The chemical compositions of cotton wool varied according to species, growing and maturity. Cotton wool alone is not likely to adsorb As(III) as there is no functional group on the material which could bind with As(III) or its compounds. The chemical structure of cotton is shown in Figure 7.



Figure 7. Chemical structure of cotton [39].

In APDC system, As(III) can be complexed with APDC and adsorbed on the cotton wool. From Kamada research [12], the optimal ratio between As(III) and APDC should be 1 : 3 which confirmed by continuous variation plots. The formations of As(III) - APDC complex is presented in Figure 8. The adsorption of the As(III) - APDC on the cotton can be attributed to the van der Waals attraction between neutral hydrophobic complex and hydrophobic moieties of the cotton i.e. protein and wax [31].



Figure 8. Schematic of As(III) - APDC complexation in acidic condition.

Incontrast, As(V) often present in oxyanion form, which has negative charge similar to APDC. So, As(V) could not interact with APDC due to this reason. The chemical forms of As(V) is presented in Figure 9.



Figure 9. Chemical forms of inorganic As(V).

For L - cysteine system, the As(III) forms a 1:3 complex with and L – cysteine. The complex of As(III) – cysteine is shown in Figure 10.



Figure 10. Schematic of As(III) - cysteine complex [40].

However, the %adsorption of As(III) and As(V) on the cotton wool by using L – cysteine as sulfur containing ligand was very low. The possible reason may be described from the reaction between As(III) and L – cysteine in Equation 3.8.

$$As(III) + 3(HS - cys) \rightleftharpoons As(S - cys)_3 + 3H^+$$
....(3.8)

The H⁺ from the reaction caused an increase of acidity of solution. In a strong acidic medium the H⁺ competes with As(III) – cysteine complex for the binding with cotton wool [41]. Moreover, As(III) - cysteine complex consists of carboxyl group (-COOH) and amino group (-NH₂) which are hydrophilic and that increase the hydrophilicity of the molecule. Thus, As(III) – cysteine complex could be dissolved in de – ionized water and desorbed form the cotton wool column.

As for the diethyldithiocarbamic acid system, from Kamada studies [12], the reaction between As(III) and diethyldithiocarbamic acid could occur at pH 6. So, at pH 2, diethyldithiocarbamic acid could not form complex with As(III). Thus, the

adsorption efficiency is similar to those obtained when using only cotton wool. The structure of As(III) and diethyldithiocarbamic acid complex is shown in Figure 11.



Figure 11. Structure of As(III) and diethyldithiocarbamic acid complex [42].

Based on these findings, APDC was selected as the model sulfur containing ligand for further experiments.

4.1.2 Comparison of solid phase extraction methods

As previously described, in method I, 10 mL of 1 mg L⁻¹ arsenic solution at pH 2 was mixed with 0.5 mL 1% APDC solution. The mixture was shaken and then passed through the cotton column. For method II, APDC was impregnated by soaking cotton wool in 1% APDC solution to prepare an adsorption column. Then 10 mL of 1 mg L⁻¹ arsenic solution at pH 2 was passed through the column. The results are shown in Figure 12. The adsorption efficiency of arsenic obtained from Method I was roughly 98% while Method II produce merely 55% adsorption efficiency. Typical contents of cotton wool, apart from cellulose, include protein, wax, and others, all of which might have contributed to the lower adsorption efficiency toward the analyte. Thus, the pre treatment method (alkaline treatment) was employed for the elimination of those mentioned compositions. The alkaline treatment allows the removal of hydrophobic contents such as lignin, hemicellulose, wax, protein and oils from cotton wool surface [43, 44]. However, the adsorption efficiency of this pretreated material further decreased. It may be explained that the alkaline treatment could improve the hydrophilicity of the cotton wool [45] making it unfavorable for the adsorption of relatively hydrophobic As - APDC complex [18]. For Method II, arsenic could only interact with APDC on the cotton wool when the solution was passed through the column, thus the complexation of As(III) – APDC might be incomplete as a result of the short contact time. In addition, the attachment of APDC on cotton wool may have a negative impact to the As(III) adsorption as well because, in order to form such complex, APDC molecules should have proper orientation to bind with arsenic which is not the case here.



Figure 12. Adsorption efficiency between Method I and Method II. MIN, non – treated cotton Method I; MIT, treated cotton Method I; MIIN, non – treated cotton Method II; MIIT, treated cotton Method II.

4.1.3 Effect of pH on arsenic adsorption

As suggested by a previous study [18], the pH value plays an important role with respect to the speciation of arsenic species using APDC. Hence, the effect of pH was examined in the pH range of 2 – 6. Figure 13 shows the pH dependence of adsorption efficiency of As(III) - APDC complex on the cotton wool. The results have indicated that As(III) - APDC complex was effectively adsorbed at pH 2 with decreaseing trend towards higher pHs, while only 20 - 30% of As(V) was adsorbed on the cotton wool throughout the whole pH range studied. This insignificant adsorption was probably due to the reduction of As(V) to As(III) by sulfur contents of APDC. The following reactions occur when a sulfhydryl group (RSH) reduces As(V) to As(III) [46]:

$$As(V) + RSH \rightarrow RS - As(V) + H_2O....(3.9)$$
$$RS - As(V) + RSH \rightarrow R(SS)_{OX} + As(III)....(3.10)$$

As(III) exist as AsO_3^{3-} in solution, which means that its adsorption by cotton wool should be carried out at a certain acidity. As mentioned in the literature [27], AsO_3^{3-} could be adsorbed on thiol-cellulose (cell-SH) in acidic condition as expressed by the following equation.

$$3[\text{cell} - \text{SH}] + \text{AsO}_3^{3-} + 3\text{H}^+ \rightarrow [\text{cell} - \text{SH}]_3\text{As} + 3\text{H}_2\text{O}_{\dots}(3.11)$$

At pH 2, around 95% of As(III) – APDC complex could be adsorbed on cotton wool. This finding can probably be ascribed by the formation of hydrophobic complex between As(III) and APDC [18], and the hard/soft acid/base principle. As(III) is a soft acid due to its lower oxidation state as compared to As(V). Thus As(III) has affinity toward a soft base (APDC). In contrast, As(V) is a borderline acid and often prefer to bind with oxygens as arsenate compound [47]. The As(III) - APDC complex is unstable at high pH, thus the percentage of adsorption is unfavorable toward higher pH as experimentally demonstrated in Figure 13 [41]. The adsorption of As(III) – APDC complex can be ascribed by physisorption via van der Waals attraction for the neutral species [31]. Based on these results, pH 2 is selected for further experiments.



Figure 13. Effect of pH on the adsorption of As(III) and As(V) on the cotton wool. Condition: 1% w/v APDC.

4.1.4 Effect of APDC concentration on arsenic adsorption

As a portion of As(V) was presumably reduced and get adsorbed as As – APDC complex on the cotton wool which would lead to unsuccessful speciation, the concentration of APDC was therefore investigated in an effort to minimize this problem. The APDC concentration was varied in the range of 0.01 – 1% w/v. The results are shown in Figure 14.



Figure 14. Effect of APDC concentration on arsenic adsorption.

It is apparent that the adsorption percentage of As(III) continually increase as the concentration of APDC increase and becomes somewhat steady from 0.1% upward wih approximately 98% of adsorption efficiency. On the other hand, As(V) was virtually not retained when the APDC concentration was below 0.1% but slightly increased to 20% as the APDC concentration was raised up to 1%. Such increase was belived to be due to the reduction of As(V) to As(III) when APDC was in excess and the subsequent APDC – complex formation. Therefore, 0.1% APDC was chosen as he optimal concentration for further experiments since this represented the condition where maximum As(III) adsorption could be obtained while the interference from the reduction of As(V) was minimized.

After that, the adsorption of As(III) and As(V) was evaluated again using 0.1% APDC with pH variation ranging from 1 to 6 to confirm whether the adsorption on the cotton wool was similar to those obtained when using 1%. The results were shown in Figure 15. The adsorption percentage of As(III) was still in the same range as using 1% APDC while As(V) could not be adsorbed on the cotton wool which indicated that the reduction from sulfur containing ligand might not occur. This result confirms that 0.1% APDC concentration is suitable for this method to allow the adsorbtion of As(III) on the cotton wool while As(V) is not retained. Thus, 0.1% APDC concentration was selected for complexation with As(III) in the subsequent experiments.



Figure 15. Effect of pH on the adsorption of As(III) and As(V) on the cotton wool. Condition: 0.1% w/v APDC.

4.1.5 Effect of the amount of cotton wool

To evaluate the effect of the amount of cotton wool, the mass of cotton wool ranging from 0.1 - 0.5 g were evaluated. The result is shown in Figure 16. The adsorption percentages of As(III) are nearly constant throughout the conditions used. Even a little amount of cotton wool (0.1 g) could adsorb most As(III) in the solution. This efficient adsorption may be accredited to the high surface area of cotton which in turn increase the rate of adsorption [37]. Meanwhile, the As(V) still could not be retained on the cotton column regardless of its mass. However, 0.5 g of cotton was used for the preparation of extraction column in order to facilitate the packing into the syringe.



Figure 16. Effect of the amount of cotton wool on arsenic adsorption.

4.1.6 Effect of adsorption flow rate

The flow rate of sample solution is a very important parameter for quantitative retention of As(III) on the adsorbent and the length of complete analysis [19]. According to the previous experiments, the sample solution was passed through the column by means of gravity. For this experiment, the peristaltic pump was used and the flow was adjusted in the range of 1-5 mL min⁻¹. The result was shown in Table 4.

Flow rate (mL min ⁻	¹) %adsorption	%RSD
1	99.1	6.10
3	98.3	12.5
5	99.5	6.64
n = 3		

Table 4 The effect of flow rate on As(III) adsorption

At flow rates of $1 - 5 \text{ mL min}^{-1}$, the adsorption percentages of As(III) on cotton wool were very similar. It was probably due to the high surface area of the cotton wool [37] that the adsorption of As(III) – APDC complex could be achieved relatively quickly. So, to complete the analysis in a shorter time, the flow rate of 5 mL min⁻¹ was selected as the optimal adsorption flow rate.

4.2 Optimization of elution parameters

To effectively determine As(III) that was retained on the cotton wool, types of eluent and elution flow rate were evaluated to obtain the optimal eluting conditions for the determination by ICP - OES.

4.2.1 Types of eluent

In order to determine As(III) concentration, the analyte was eluted from the cotton column. The selection of eluent is based on the affinity between eluent and analyte. Normally, the analyte can be eluted by using a suitable acid, akali or complexing agent [27]. The effect of eluents on the elution of As(III) was studied by using various eluents. The recovery was used to evaluate the elution efficiency of eluents and calculated from the amount of As(III) in the initial solution (N_i) and the amount of As(III) eluted from the cotton wool (N_f) as Equation 3.2. The results are given in Table 5.

The first series of elution was mineral acids (1 M HNO₃ and 1 M HCl), which rely on the oxidization of As(III) to As(V) and the competition between As(III) – APDC complex and H⁺ to bind with cotton wool in acidic medium [41]. It was found that the recovery of As(III) was very low for both eluents. These results may be caused by the oxidation of As(III) to As(V) that is a kinetically slow process [48].

The next eluent was 1 M NaOH, which was used to make the condition basic that could in turn create an unstable or unfavorable environment for As(III) – APDC complex (see Figure 13. Effect of pH on the adsorption of As(III) and As(V) on cotton wool). Nonetheless, the results showed an unacceptable recovery under this condition, one possible reason for this is that the contact time between NaOH and As(III) – APDC complex may be not enough for disrupting the As(III) and APDC bonding. In previous work by Doker [4] the desorption of As(III) – APDC complex by basic solution was achieved when a very low flow rate (0.2 mL min⁻¹) was employed resulting in longer operating time.

A combination of organic and inorganic reagents could be used for the elution of retained metal complex from the adsorbent [49]. In this research, methanol as organic reagent was employed to increase the elution efficiency of inorganic reagents. 1 M HNO₃ or 1 M HCl solutions were prepared in 10% methanol in de – ionized water. Then the mixture solutions were used for As(III) elution from the column. The recovery rose to 32.8 - 44.3% but it was still not quite satisfied. Moreover, methanol is not advisable for ICP-OES as the introduction of organic solvents can typically lead to a number of undesirable consequences, e.g. plasma instability, molecular spectral interferences, and carbon encrustation [50].

An oxidizing reagent, H_2O_2 was used next for improving the conversion of chemical form of As(III) during the elution step. 1 M HCl in 2% H_2O_2 produced a recovery of 44.3%. When the concentration of acids were increased to 4 M, the recovery was improved significantly to 80.6 – 85.1%. Finally, the mixture of 4 M HNO₃, 4 M HCl and 0.5 M H_2O_2 at a ratio of 1 : 1 : 1 was used and gave acceptable recovery at 95.5% with 1.95 %RSD. Thus 4 M HNO₃, 4 M HCl and 0.5 M H_2O_2 (1 : 1 : 1) was selected for the desorption of As(III) in further experiments.

Eluents	%Recovery	%RSD
1 M HNO ₃	5.82	15.1
1 M HCl	7.53	42.8
1 M NaOH	8.82	1.22
1 M HNO ₃ in 10% methanol	59.7	32.9
1 M HCl in 10% methanol	32.8	11.2
1 M HCl in 2% H ₂ O ₂	44.3	23.5
4 M HNO ₃ and 0.5 M H ₂ O ₂	85.1	2.42
4 M HCl and 0.5 M H ₂ O ₂	80.6	14.9
4 M HNO ₃ , 4 M HCl and 0.5 M H ₂ O ₂	93.7	1.96
n = 3		

Table 5 List of eluents that used for As(III) elution

To gain an insight into the elution of As – APDC complex, the mechanism of this elution process was investigated. The solution containing 50 μ g L⁻¹ As(III) and 50 μ g L⁻¹ As(V), was passed through the column and the eluate was analyzed to quantify sulfur content, a key indicative element of APDC, in the solution by using ICP – OES. The results were shown in Table 6.

Table 6 Emission of signal from sulfur content

Sample	Signal	%RSD
Really a	(counts/second)	
As 50 µg L ⁻¹ + APDC	283,688	4.05
Solution from adsorption process	25,639	16.8
Solution from elution process	14,064	9.65

Sulfur wavelength = 182.565 nm

The result indicated that the sample solution mixed with APDC gave a very high content of sulfur. After the adsorption, only small amount of sulfur was detected which meant that almost As(III) - APDC was adsorbed on the cotton column. In the elution step, a similar result was observed in that only insignificant sulfur signal was detected. This could imply that the elution mechanism might only be related to the oxidation of As(III) to As(V) by such oxidizing eluent (4 M HNO₃, 4 M HCl and 0.5 M H₂O₂) because the main parts of APDC still retained on the cotton column.

4.2.2 Effect of elution flow rate

The effect of elution flow rate was examined in the range of 1 - 5 mL min⁻¹ utilizing 5 mL of 4 M HNO₃, 4 M HCl and 0.5 M H₂O₂ (1 : 1 : 1) as eluent. The results were shown in Table 7 that the recovery percentage of the flow rate at 1 mL min⁻¹ was 96.2% and this decreased when the flow rate was increased to 3 and 5 mL min⁻¹, respectively, probably due to the shorter contact time between the eluent solution and sample. Therefore, the elution flow rate of 1 mL min⁻¹ was selected in this work.

Flow rate (mL min ⁻¹)	%recovery	%RSD
1	96.2	3.33
3	79.2	3.02
5	83.0	3.34
n = 3		

 Table 7 The dependence of As(III) recoveries on eluent flow rates

4.3 Method validation

The accuracy (% recovery) and precision (% RSD) of the method were examined in the following experiments for demonstration of the validity of the proposed method.

4.3.1 Effect of sample concentration

A series of mixed As(III) + As(V) solutions were prepared in the concentration range from 10 – 1000 μ g L⁻¹ and then the speciation procedures were carried out as previously described. The accuracy and precision were determined. The accuracy was calculated from the recovery percentage of As(III) and As(V) and it should be in the range of 80 – 120%. Precision of the method was evaluated by using %RSD. The acceptable %RSD value should not be over 10%. The results were shown in Table 8.

		A	s(III)				As(V)	
Sample	As(III)	, μg L ⁻¹	Recovery,	RSD,	As(V),	μg L ⁻¹	Recovery,	RSD,
	added	found	%	%	added	found	%	%
As10	10.0	9.68	96.8	6.84	10.0	11.0	110	2.94
As50	50.0	44.9	89.7	3.98	50.0	55.6	111	0.99
As100	100	84.0	84.0	1.54	100	112	112	1.16
As400	400	336	83.9	7.12	400	437	109	7.79
As800	800	667	83.3	6.67	800	813	102	0.49
As1000	1000	947	94.7	3.54	1000	1008	101	0.45

 Table 8 % recovery of As(III) and As(V) of mixed solution

n = 3

As(III) and As(V) concentration are equal in each samples solution.

The numbers behind As in the sample column are refered to As concentrations.

The results indicated that the present method was able to accurately determine both As(III) and As(V) in the mixed solution with acceptable %recovery and %RSD under a wide range of concentrations. The proposed method could separate As(III) and As(V) at 10 μ g L⁻¹ which met the USEPA standard for maximum concentration of arsenic in drinking water.

Since the proposed method could be used for arsenic speciation at very low concentration (10 μ g L⁻¹), the preconcentration step is unnecessary The method shows the good potential for preconcentration step, if the concentration is lower than the limit of detection.

GHULALONGKORN UNIVERSITY

4.3.3 Application to arsenic speciation in real water samples

The developed method was next applied for the speciation of inorganic arsenic in real water samples. Water samples were collected from various sources as described in Table 9.

arch institute,
versity's
Krabu,
mpany in

 Table 9 Sample name and sources

The accuracy of this method was assessed by spiking a required concentration of As(III) and As(V) into water samples and the results are given in Tables 11.

The recoveries of As(III) and As(V) were in the range of 85 - 115%. This indicated a good performance and accuracy of As speciation in water samples and %RSDs were within the range of 0.33 - 6.66%, showing a good precision of the method.

The results of water samples may be different from those obtain with the arsenic solutions. In natural waters, organic and inorganic compounds may form stable complex with arsenic. The behaviors of metals may diverge from the artificial solutions due to the presence of strong complexes that are tough to degrade, or is adsorbed on colloids. Hence, the speciation efficiency may vary remarkably [51]. On sample T5411, totoal As from the determination by ICP – OES is 184 μ g L⁻¹, but the summation of As(III) and As(V) is about 145 μ g L⁻¹. This can be assumed in the sample may contain other As species e.g. organic arsenic which were adsorbed by cotton wool and could not be eluted by selected eluent. It is conclusive that the other As species in sample can not disturb the As speciation by using the present method.

However, the results are closely associated with the literature reported by Tian et al [41]. It has been reported that only As(III) can form complex with APDC while the other species can not. This can be translated into a potentially speciation of As(III) by adsorption onto a suitable solid support or transferring into liquid medium.

Sample	Total As		V	s(III)			7	As(V)	
	$\mu g L^{\text{-}1}$	Added, μg L ⁻¹	Found, µg L ⁻¹	Recovery, %	RSD, %	Added, μg L ⁻¹	Found, µg L ⁻¹	Recovery, %	RSD, %
Tap1	nd	0	nd		ı	0	nd		·
		1000	976	97.6	1.97	1000	1010	101	0.40
SW1	pu	0	pu	Contraction of the second seco	1	0	pu	·	ı
		AL(100	97.3	97.3	2.56	100	103	103	0.82
T1	33.10	ong o	3.89		32.3	0	30.6		1.68
		10 01	12.2	85.6	3.37	10	40.5	99.5	2.30
		RN 92	49.1	91.1	6.11	20	86.6	112	2.42
		1000	956	95.2	4.44	1000	1041	104	1.44
C1	pu	0	pu			0	pu	·	ı
		ER 0001	962	96.2	2.67	1000	1010	101	0.89
TP5411	184*	**0	136)	ı	0	8.64		0.33
		50**	194	118	ı	50	65.4	113	6.66
		100	250	114	4.65	100	105	96.3	0.65
n = 3, 1	nd = not detect	able							
* Dilut	tion factor = 1(000, ** n = 2							

Table 10 Determination of As(III) and As(V) in water samples

35

CHAPTER V

CONCLUSION

This work was focused on developing a method for the speciation of arsenic in environmental samples by using cotton wool as solid phase extraction and a sulfur containing ligand as chelating agent followed by the determination by ICP – OES.

First, the adsorption conditions for As(III) were optimized. As(III) and As(V) solution were mixed with sulfur containing ligand solutions including ammonium pyrrolidinedithiocabarmate (APDC), L – cysteine and diethyl dithiocarbamic acid to form complex before passing into cotton wool. APDC was found to be the most effective complexing agent that could form As(III) – APDC complex at pH 2 which in turn get adsorbed onto the cotton wool. Alternatively, the APDC was impregnated onto the cotton wool to make a separation column. The adsorption efficiency of the two separation methods were compared. It was found that the adsorption efficiency obtained from mixing of As(III) amd APDC is significantly greater than those of the APDC – impregnated column. The optimal adsorption conditions were pH 2, 0.1% APDC concentration, 0.5 g of cotton and flow rate of 5 mL min⁻¹. As(III) – APDC complex was adsorbed onto the cotton wool while As(V) literally had no affinity toward APDC and thus not retained on the cotton wool. The adsorption efficiency of As(III) obtained from the proposed method was greater than 98%.

The As(III) – APDC complex previously adsorbed on the cotton wool was then eluted by using various eluents based on oxidizing of As(III) to As(V) and released from the cotton wool column. The recovery of 96.2% was obtained from a mixture of 4 M HNO₃, 4 M HCl and 0.5 M H_2O_2 with a ratio of 1 : 1 : 1 at a flow rate of 1 mL min⁻¹.

Next, the optimized conditions were used for arsenic speciation in a set of mixed synthetic solutions. As(III) and As(V) concentrations were varied from 10 – 1000 μ g L⁻¹, and the solutions were processed through the proposed method. For As(III), the recovery was 83.3 - 96.8% and %RSD was 0.63 – 7.12%. For As(V), the recovery was 101 – 112% and %RSD was 0.45 – 7.79%.

The developed method was subsequently applied to perform the speciation analysis of arsenic in water samples from various sources including natural waters and wastewater. The method accuracy and precision were evaluated by using %recovery of arsenic in samples and %RSD. It was demonstrated that the present method exhibit decent %recovery and %RSD within acceptable range for both As(III) and As(V) in various water samples.

Potential applications

The present method showed the potential for speciation of arsenic in drinking water with the required maximum contamination level not over 10 μ g L⁻¹ as well as the capability of performing the preconcentration of the samples.

Suggestion for future work

The present method can be applied to the speciation and determination of As(III) and As(V) in other kinds of environmental samples such as soil, plants and sludge. The effect of potential interference, e.g. organo arsenic in sample also should be investigated.



REFERENCES

- 1. *Arsenic*. 2018 15 February 2018 [cited 2018 16/4]; Available from: https://www.who.int/en/news-room/fact-sheets/detail/arsenic.
- 2. Mandal, B. K. and Suzuki, K. T., Arsenic round the world: a review. *Talanta*, 2002. 58(1): 201-235.
- 3. Sánez, J., Arsenic geochemistry and its impact in public health: the Bangladesh case. *Revista de Química*, 2008. 22(1-2): 5-18.
- 4. Döker, S., Uzun, L. and Denizli, A., Arsenic speciation in water and snow samples by adsorption onto PHEMA in a micro-pipette-tip and GFAAS detection applying large-volume injection. *Talanta*, 2013. 103: 123-129.
- แม้น อมรสิทธิ์, อมร เพชรสม, ยุวดี เชี่ยววัฒนา, อทิตยา ศิริภิญญานนท์, ศรีวไล โอมอภิญญาณ และ อุมา พร สุขม่วง. หลักการและเทคนิคการวิเคราะห์เชิงเครื่องมือ. 2000: โรงพิมพ์ชวนพิมพ์.
- 6. Ingle Jr, J. D. and Crouch, S. R., *Spectrochemical analysis*. 1988.
- Issa, N. B., Rajaković-Ognjanović, V. N., Marinković, A. D. and Rajaković, L. V., Separation and determination of arsenic species in water by selective exchange and hybrid resins. *Analytica Chimica Acta*, 2011. 706(1): 191-198.
- 8. Narukawa, T., Matsumoto, E., Nishimura, T. and Hioki, A., Reversed phase column HPLC-ICP-MS conditions for arsenic speciation analysis of rice flour. *Analytical Sciences*, 2015. 31(6): 521-527.
- 9. Hirata, S., Toshimitsu, H. and Aihara, M., Determination of arsenic species in marine samples by HPLC-ICP-MS. *Analytical Sciences*, 2006. 22(1): 39-43.
- Lai, G., Chen, G. and Chen, T., Speciation of As^{III} and As^V in fruit juices by dispersive liquid–liquid microextraction and hydride generation-atomic fluorescence spectrometry. *Food Chemistry*, 2016. 190: 158-163.
- Gonzálvez, A., Llorens, A., Cervera, M., Armenta, S. and De La Guardia, M., Non-chromatographic speciation of inorganic arsenic in mushrooms by hydride generation atomic fluorescence spectrometry. *Food Chemistry*, 2009. 115(1): 360-364.
- 12. Kamada, T., Selective determination of arsenic (III) and arsenic (V) with ammonium pyrrolidinedithiocarbamate, sodium diethyldithiocarbamate and dithizone by means of flameless atomic-absorption spectrophotometry with a carbon-tube atomizer. *Talanta*, 1976. 23(11-12): 835-839.
- 13. Chen, M.-L., Ma, L.-Y. and Chen, X.-W., New procedures for arsenic speciation: A review. *Talanta*, 2014. 125: 78-86.
- Camel, V., Solid phase extraction of trace elements. *Spectrochimica Acta. Part B, Atomic Spectroscopy*, 2003. 58(7): 1177-1233.

- Kecili, R. and Hussain, C. M., Chapter 4 Mechanism of Adsorption on Nanomaterials, in Nanomaterials in Chromatography, C.M. Hussain, Editor. 2018, Elsevier. 89-115.
- 16. Shah, A. Q., Kazi, T. G., Baig, J. A., Arain, M. B., Afridi, H. I., Kandhro, G. A., Wadhwa, S. K. and Kolachi, N. F., Determination of inorganic arsenic species (As³⁺ and As⁵⁺) in muscle tissues of fish species by electrothermal atomic absorption spectrometry (ETAAS). *Food Chemistry*, 2010. 119(2): 840-844.
- 17. Thongkhao, T. and Imyim, A. Speciation of arsenic by ion exchange resin and iron-copper binary oxide. in The 42nd Congress on Science and Technoology of Thailand (STT42). 2016. Bangkok, Thailand: The Science Society of Thailand Under the Patronage of His Majesty the King, Faculty of Science, Chulalongkorn University, Patumwan Road, Bangkok, Thailand.
- 18. Jiang, Y., Wu, Y., Liu, J., Xia, X. and Wang, D., Ammonium pyrrolidinedithiocarbamate-modified activated carbon micro-column extraction for the determination of As (III) in water by graphite furnace atomic absorption spectrometry. *Microchimica Acta*, 2008. 161(1-2): 137-142.
- Chen, S., Zhan, X., Lu, D., Liu, C. and Zhu, L., Speciation analysis of inorganic arsenic in natural water by carbon nanofibers separation and inductively coupled plasma mass spectrometry determination. *Analytica Chimica Acta*, 2009. 634(2): 192-196.
- 20. Pyrzynska, K., Application of carbon sorbents for the concentration and separation of metal ions. *Analytical Sciences*, 2007. 23(6): 631-637.
- 21. De PeÑa, Y. P., Gallego, M. and Valcarcel, M., Fullerene: a sensitive and selective sorbent for the continuous preconcentration and atomic absorption determination of cadmium. *Journal of Analytical Atomic Spectrometry*, 1997. 12(4): 453-457.
- Silva, M. M., Arruda, M. A., Krug, F. J., Oliveira, P. V., Queiroz, Z. F., Gallego, M. and Valcárcel, M., On-line separation and preconcentration of cadmium, lead and nickel in a fullerene (C60) minicolumn coupled to flow injection tungsten coil atomic absorption spectrometry. *Analytica Chimica Acta*, 1998. 368(3): 255-263.
- 23. Gonzalez, M. M., Gallego, M. and Valcárcel, M., Effectiveness of fullerene as a sorbent for the determination of trace amounts of cobalt in wheat flour by electrothermal atomic absorption spectrometry. *Journal of Analytical Atomic Spectrometry*, 1999. 14(4): 711-716.
- 24. Pereira, M., Pereira-Filho, E., Berndt, H. and Arruda, M., Determination of cadmium and lead at low levels by using preconcentration at fullerene coupled to thermospray flame furnace atomic absorption spectrometry. *Spectrochimica Acta Part B: Atomic Spectroscopy*, 2004. 59(4): 515-521.

- 25. Leśniewska, B. A., Godlewska, I. and Godlewska—Żyłkiewicz, B., The study of applicability of dithiocarbamate-coated fullerene C6 0 for preconcentration of palladium for graphite furnace atomic absorption spectrometric determination in environmental samples. *Spectrochimica Acta Part B: Atomic Spectroscopy*, 2005. 60(3): 377-384.
- 26. Yu, M., Tian, W., Sun, D., Shen, W., Wang, G. and Xu, N., Systematic studies on adsorption of 11 trace heavy metals on thiol cotton fiber. *Analytica Chimica Acta*, 2001. 428(2): 209-218.
- 27. Yu, M., Sun, D., Tian, W., Wang, G., Shen, W. and Xu, N., Systematic studies on adsorption of trace elements Pt, Pd, Au, Se, Te, As, Hg, Sb on thiol cotton fiber. *Analytica Chimica Acta*, 2002. 456(1): 147-155.
- 28. Yu, M., Sun, D., Huang, R., Tian, W., Shen, W., Zhang, H. and Xu, N., Determination of ultra-trace gold in natural water by graphite furnace atomic absorption spectrophotometry after in situ enrichment with thiol cotton fiber. *Analytica Chimica Acta*, 2003. 479(2): 225-231.
- 29. Yu, M.-Q., Liu, G.-Q. and Jin, Q., Determination of trace arsenic, antimony, selenium and tellurium in various oxidation states in water by hydride generation and atomic-absorption spectrophotometry after enrichment and separation with thiol cotton. *Talanta*, 1983. 30(4): 265-270.
- 30. Marin, L., Lhomme, J. and Carignan, J., Determination of selenium concentration in sixty five reference materials for geochemical analysis by GFAAS after separation with thiol cotton. *Geostandards Newsletter*, 2001. 25(2-3): 317-324.
- 31. Yang, R., Su, Y., Aubrecht, K. B., Wang, X., Ma, H., Grubbs, R. B., Hsiao, B. S. and Chu, B., Thiol-functionalized chitin nanofibers for As (III) adsorption. *Polymer*, 2015. 60: 9-17.
- 32. Yu, C., Cai, Q., Guo, Z.-X., Yang, Z. and Khoo, S. B., Speciation analysis of tellurium by solid-phase extraction in the presence of ammonium pyrrolidine dithiocarbamate and inductively coupled plasma mass spectrometry. *Analytical and Bioanalytical Chemistry*, 2003. 376(2): 236-242.
- 33. Moghimi, A., Selective Pre-concentration and Solid Phase Extraction of Mercury (II) from Natural Water by Alumina-loaded Ammonium Pyrrolidine Dithiocarbamate Phases. *Analytical Chemistry an Indian Journal*, 2005. 7(2): 62-68.
- 34. Qu, R., Sun, C., Wang, M., Ji, C., Xu, Q., Zhang, Y., Wang, C., Chen, H. and Yin, P., Adsorption of Au (III) from aqueous solution using cotton fiber/chitosan composite adsorbents. *Hydrometallurgy*, 2009. 100(1-2): 65-71.
- 35. Chai, L., Li, Q., Zhu, Y., Zhang, Z., Wang, Q., Wang, Y. and Yang, Z., Synthesis of thiol-functionalized spent grain as a novel adsorbent for divalent

metal ions. Bioresource Technology, 2010. 101(15): 6269-6272.

- 36. Zang, C., Zhang, D., Xiong, J., Lin, H. and Chen, Y., Preparation of a novel adsorbent and heavy metal ion adsorption. *Journal of Engineered Fibers and Fabrics*, 2014. 9(4): 165-170.
- 37. Zang, C., Ren, Y., Wang, F., Lin, H. and Chen, Y., Adsorption of Cu (II) from Aqueous Solutions by Ammoniated Cotton Fiber. *Journal of Engineered Fibers and Fabrics*, 2016. 11(4): 9-18.
- Wei, Z., Liang, K., Wu, Y., Zou, Y., Zuo, J., Arriagada, D. C., Pan, Z. and Hu,
 G., The effect of pH on the adsorption of arsenic (III) and arsenic (V) at the TiO₂ anatase [101] surface. *Journal of Colloid and Interface Science*, 2016. 462: 252-259.
- 39. Hsieh, Y., Chemical structure and properties of cotton. *Cotton: Science and Technology*, 2007: 3-34.
- 40. Chen, B., Liu, Q., Popowich, A., Shen, S., Yan, X., Zhang, Q., Li, X.-F., Weinfeld, M., Cullen, W. R. and Le, X. C., Therapeutic and analytical applications of arsenic binding to proteins. *Metallomics*, 2015. 7(1): 39-55.
- 41. Tian, Y., Chen, M.-L., Chen, X.-W., Wang, J.-H., Hirano, Y., Sakamoto, H. and Shirasaki, T., Arsenic preconcentration via solid phase extraction and speciation by HPLC-gradient hydride generation atomic absorption spectrometry. *Journal of Analytical Atomic Spectrometry*, 2011. 26(1): 133-140.
- 42. Raston, C. L. and White, A. H., Crystal structures of tris (diethyldithiocarbamato)-rhodium (III) and-arsenic (III). *Journal of the Chemical Society, Dalton Transactions*, 1975(22): 2425-2429.
- 43. Bodur, M. S., Bakkal, M. and Sonmez, H. E., The effects of different chemical treatment methods on the mechanical and thermal properties of textile fiber reinforced polymer composites. *Journal of Composite Materials*, 2016. 50(27): 3817-3830.
- 44. Ouarhim, W., Zari, N., Bouhfid, R. and El Kacem Qaiss, A., 3 Mechanical performance of natural fibers-based thermosetting composites, in Mechanical and Physical Testing of Biocomposites, Fibre-Reinforced Composites and Hybrid Composites, M. Jawaid, M. Thariq and N. Saba, Editors. 2019, Woodhead Publishing. 43-60.
- 45. Ibanescu, C., Schimper, C. and Bechtold, T., Alkaline treatment of cotton in different reagent mixtures with reduced water content. II. Influence of finishing procedure. *Journal of Applied Polymer Science*, 2006. 101(2): 1194-1201.
- Gregus, Z., Roos, G., Geerlings, P. and Németi, B., Mechanism of thiol-supported arsenate reduction mediated by phosphorolytic-arsenolytic enzymes:
 II. Enzymatic formation of arsenylated products susceptible for reduction to arsenite by thiols. *Toxicological Sciences*, 2009. 110(2): 282-292.

- 47. Kitchin, K. T., Wallace, K. and Andrewes, P., *Chapter* 2 6 *Some chemical properties underlying arsenic's biological activity**, in *Arsenic Exposure and Health Effects V*, W.R. Chappell, C.O. Abernathy, R.L. Calderon and D.J. Thomas, Editors. 2003, Elsevier Science B.V.: Amsterdam. 345-354.
- 48. Wang, S. and Mulligan, C. N., Effect of natural organic matter on arsenic release from soils and sediments into groundwater. *Environmental Geochemistry and Health*, 2006. 28(3): 197-214.
- 49. Chen, M., Huo, Y. and Wang, J., Speciation of inorganic arsenic in a sequential injection dual mini-column system coupled with hydride generation atomic fluorescence spectrometry. *Talanta*, 2009. 78(1): 88-93.
- 50. Babu, S. H., Kumar, K. S., Suvardhan, K., Kiran, K., Rekha, D., Krishnaiah, L., Janardhanam, K. and Chiranjeevi, P., Preconcentration technique for the determination of trace elements in natural water samples by ICP-AES. *Environmental Monitoring and Assessment*, 2007. 128(1-3): 241-249.
- 51. Daorattanachai, P., "Preconcentration technique using activated carbon for determination of metals in fish", (Master's thesis, Faculty of Science, Chulalongkorn University, 2003).



VITA

NAME

Kavee Triteeyaprasert

DATE OF BIRTH 26 September 1991

PLACE OF BIRTH

INSTITUTIONS ATTENDED HOME ADDRESS

PUBLICATION

Bangkok, Thailand Bachelor of Science, Environmental Chemistry King Mongkut's Institute of Technology Ladkrabang 96/560 Suwintawong Rd., Lumpakchee Sub-area,

Nongchok District, Bangkok Speciation analysis of arsenic in environmental samples using thiocarbamate-cotton wool solid phase extraction and ICP-OES, 8th International Conference on Environmental Engineering, Science and Management, 23 – 24 May 2019, The Twin Towers Hotel, Bangkok,



จุฬาลงกรณ์มหาวิทยาลัย Chulalongkorn University